2:08: 26 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 9, 2010
2:08 p.m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 2:08 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

M ke Hawker,
Bill Stoltze,
Bill Thomas Jr.,
Al | an Aust er man
M ke Doogan

Neal Foster

Les Gara

Reggi e Joul e

M ke Kelly
Whodi e Sal non

Co- Chair
Co-Chair
Vice-Chair

Anna Faircl ough

Representati ve Car | Gatt o; Senat or Denni s Egan;
Representative Cathy Miunoz; Jesse Kiehl, Staff, Senator
Dennis Egan; Meghan Stangel and, Advocate, Juneau Youth
Court.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Franci Haveneister, Director, Division of Agriculture,
Departnent of Natural Resources; G nny Espenshade, Kenai

Peni nsul a Youth Court;

Ceezar Martinson, Anchorage Youth

Court; Sharon Leon, Executive Director, Anchorage Youth
Court.

SUMVARY

House Finance Conmittee 1 04/09/10 2:08 P. M



HB 70 ALASKA GROWN AGRI CULTURAL PRODUCTS
CS HB 70(FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmmttee
with no recommendations and with new fi scal
notes fromthe Departnent of Education and
t he Departnent of Natural Resources.

HB 331 YOUTH COURTS AND CRI M NAL FI NES
HB 331 was SCHEDULED but NOT HEARD

SB 257 YOUTH COURTS AND CRI M NAL FI NES
SB 257 was REPORTED out of Conmttee with a
"do pass" recomendation and with previously
publ i shed fiscal not es: FN 1(CRT),
FN 2(DHS), FN 3(LAW.

2:09:23 PM

#hb70
HOUSE BI LL NO. 70

"An Act establishing the farmto-school programin the
Departnment of Natural Resources, the Alaska grown
fresh fruit and vegetable grant program in the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnment, the
farmers' market technology inprovenent pilot program
in the Departnent of Environnental Conservation, and
the farnmers to food banks pilot program in the
Departnent  of Commer ce, Communi ty, and Econom c
Devel opnent . "

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO, SPONSOR, presented an overview
of the bill, explaining that HB 70 would help farners and
children by creating a nexus between children and real food
that children can be exposed too. He noted that people do
not use enough fresh food, especially children. As a
result, 27 percent of high school students in Alaska are
obese or overweight. The | egislation would provide students
with opportunities that are not currently available, such

as “agriculture day” in elenentary schools, which would
focus on educating children about where food cones from
The bill focuses primarily on the encouragenent phase,

hel ping students to get excited about dealing with fresh
food with the help of the farmers.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/09/10 2:08 P. M



Representative Gara appreciated the work on the Mat-Su
farmng issue. He asked for verification that t he
legislation reflects current law in regards to price
preference granted to locally grown agricultural products.

Representative Gatto confirned that is correct.

Representative Gatto also nentioned food security. Root
cellars and farner's storage help root <crops to |ast
t hroughout the vyear. The «creation of a farmto-school
program wll help children recognize this and ains at
encouraging farmers to stay with farm ng.

2:14: 05 PM
Representative Austerman asked whether schools are defined
in the bill. Representative Gatto did not have an answer at
that tine.

Representative Austerman noted that work progranms such as
the Al aska Job Corps that teach culinary plans should be
included in the legislation in addition to traditional
schools. Representative Gatto agreed and noted that it is
possible that the term “schools” in the bill is defined as
all schools overseen by the Departnent of Education.

2:15: 37 PM

Vice-Chair Thomas MOVED to ADOPT proposed conmittee
substitute, work draft 26-LS0284\ P, Bannister, 4/8/10.

Co-Chair Stoltze OBIJECTED for discussion

2:16: 01 PM

BEN MULLI GAN, STAFF, CO CHAIR STOLTZE explained that the
CS, which was drafted in the previous year, was updated to
reflect passage in the current fiscal year. January 25,
2010 was changed to January 25, 2011 on Page 3, line 20.
The sunset date was changed to July 1, 2014, in section 5,
to reflect that the legislature would review the program
after four years.

There being NO further OBJECTION, the CS was adopt ed.
Co-Chair Stoltze talked of farmng and farm ng regi ons and

observed that the bill's relevance is not just limted to
t he Pal mer area.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/09/10 2:08 P. M



2:17:45 PM

Vi ce-Chair Thomas wondered if there is still a significant
anount of farming in Tanana. Representative Kelly replied
that it has grown a |ot.

2:19: 02 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze nentioned the fiscal note and asked for
any discussion from conmmttee nenbers. Representati ve
Doogan asked for verification that the fiscal note was to
t he Resources Comm ttee version.

Co-Chair Stoltze replied in the affirmative and noted it
woul d be updated to reflect the Finance CS

Representative Doogan noted the fiscal note included the
funding for two positions and asked for a brief description
of each of the positions.

2:20: 57 PM

FRANCI HAVEMEI STER, DIRECTOR, DI VISION OF AGRI CULTURE
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, discussed the departnent's
fiscal note. She confirmed that there are two positions

requested under the bill. One position is for a Range 18
devel opment specialist required to inplenent the in-schoo
education process as well as educating the schools

statewide. In addition, an agricultural inspector would be
necessary if a garden program were inplenented, in order to
provi de food inspection prior to its entry into schools for
consunpti on.

Representative Austernman observed that it appeared the
legislation would only involve schools in the public
system He noted that a definition of schools is needed and
that the legislation should apply to university and al
ot hers.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked Representative Gatto if he would
want the bill to be inclusive of all schools.

Representative Gatto verified that he would |like to be as
inclusive as possible. He remarked that he would even |ike
to see people who have no ability to grow crops included,
as long as the inpetus and structure for the programare in
pl ace wth state support.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/09/10 2:08 P. M



Representative Austerman commented that he would also like
to be as inclusive as possible for as many as possi bl e.

2:23:37 PM

Representati ve Doogan stated that the bill covers
everything that the Departnment of Education accredits
except for the University of Alaska. He noted that the I|ist
| ocated on page 6, appears to be conplete wth the
exception of the University.

Representative Gara asked the departnment to explain whether

it is already providing agricultural i nspection for
products that are produced in the state. He wondered why
the bill required another agricultural inspector position.

V5. Havenei ster answered that the position would be
necessary if gardens were inplenmented in rural areas to
guarantee that the process of clean food developnment is
understood. There are currently two inspectors at the
Division of Agriculture, and their tinme would not allow
themto travel to rural Al aska.

Representative Gara asked for verification that the
depart nment currently enpl oys t wo i nspect ors. MVs.
Havenei st er agreed.

Representative Gara asked if the program would increase the
demand by 20 percent. M. Haveneister responded that
i npl ementing the program state-w de would increase expenses
due to travel costs.

Representative Gara voiced that there are farns statew de
t hat have products for consunption. He noted that it is not
obvious how the program differs from the agricultural
i nspector needs that currently exist in rural areas.

Ms. Haveneister clarified that there are two inspectors for
Anchorage who do inspections for |arge producers who sel
into retail. For schools wanting to nove product into the
school system for consunption, there would need to be an
i nspection process in place.

Co-Chair Stoltze voiced the need to |look at the fiscal note
further.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/09/10 2:08 P. M



2:27:49 PM

Representative Austernman asked whether rural areas wth
community gardens would need the produce to be inspected
prior to bringing it into the schools for consunption. M.
Havenei ster affirned.

Representative Austerman asked if there would be a fee to
the conmmunity for the inspection.

Ms. Havenei ster responded that the fiscal note does not
reflect a fee for comunity inspection. The fiscal note
woul d include the devel opnent specialist traveling to do
nor e educat i on t ype- wor K. Currently, nost of t he
i nspections are done on the road system so the departnent
has not had to address the issue.

Representative Austerman asked if a restaurant has to pay a
fee for inspections, would the gardens also be subject to
an inspection fee from the Departnment of Natural Resources
( DNR) . Ms. Havenei ster verified the possibility and
responded that DNR would have to ook into it.

Representative Austernman asked if DNR would anticipate
regul ations. M. Haveneister responded possibly, and noted
it would depend on what schools were involved and on how
extensive the travel would be.

2:29:51 PM

Representative Gara noted the inportance of wupdating the
fiscal note before the bill goes to the Senate.

Vice-Chair Thomas MOWED to report CS HB 70(FIN) out of
Commttee wth i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was
so ordered.

CS HB 70(FIN) was REPORTED out of Committee with no
recommendations and wth new fiscal notes from the
Department of Education and the Department of Natural
Resour ces.

2:31: 08 PM At EASE
2:32: 55 PM RECONVENED
#sb257

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/09/10 2:08 P. M



SENATE BI LL NO. 257

"An Act relating to funding for youth courts; and
relating to accounting for crimnal fines."

2:33:29 PM

SENATOR DENNIS  EGAN, SPONSOR, expl ai ned t hat t he
| egi sl ation provides a sustainable funding source for youth
courts. Youth courts across the state share the sane basic
princi pal that young people picked up for small crinmes get
atrial by their peers. He pointed out that only 10 percent
of juveniles who go through the program re-offend, saving
the state approximately $10 thousand per offender. He
mai ntai ned that the program provides real attention and
real consequences. The kids who volunteer in the program
get great training in crimnal law, which is another
benefit to Al askans. The legislation designates a portion
of crimnal fines as a funding source for the courts.
Currently, adult crimnal fines go into the unrestricted
general fund. Senate Bill 257 designates up to 25 percent
of those funds for youth courts. Senator Egan noted that
maki ng crimnals pay for crinme prevention is |ogical.

2:35: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MJUNQZ, a Co-Sponsor of SB 257, spoke in
support of the legislation. She noted that youth courts in
general and have been very successful, and specifically
mentioned the success of the program in Juneau. There are
12 youth courts across the state. The bill sponsors
received a significant anpunt of input from youth courts
across the state as well as from police departnents,
muni ci pal ities and i ndividual s.

Represent ati ve Doogan asked how much 25 percent of fines
woul d armount to.

JESSE KIEHL, STAFF, SENATOR EGAN, explained that crimna
fines average approximately $5.2 mllion to $5.3 mllion
per year. Providing 25 percent of those fines would be a
significant increase over current funding for youth courts
or the near term antici pated need.

Represent ati ve Doogan asked how the bill would deal with a
mechani sm for funding the current need.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/09/10 2:08 P. M



M. Kiehl answered that excess funds are automatically
returned to the unrestricted general fund when the
authorization is greater than the anount needed. The
| egi sl ative appropriation would be based on the need of the
youth courts. Twenty-five 25 percent would |eave room for
future gromh in the program

2:39:10 PM

Representative Austerman asked for clarification regarding
| anguage in the legislation that states the |egislature
"may" appropriate 25 percent. He asked if that neant the
| egi slature could appropriate 10 percent if that was a
sufficient anount.

M. Kiehl observed that 10 percent would be approximtely
the anount appropriated in the Senate version of the
oper ati ng budget .

Representative Minoz pointed out that in the House version
there was an amendnent added to include the | anguage “up to
25 percent”. Representative Gara did not think the
addi ti onal |anguage was necessary and observed that section
3 is permssible.

2:40:43 PM

Representative Foster noted his support for youth courts.
He noted that youth courts have an 8 percent recidivism
rate, which is lower than the traditional juvenile justice
system and asked if there is a cut-off point regarding the
ki nds of cases that youth courts can accept. He questioned
if the 8 percent rate reflects an apples-to-apples
conpari son between youth courts and the juvenile justice
system

M. Kiehl explained that Alaska statute 47.12.400 sets a
bar for what can be handled by the juvenile court. Cases
referred to youth courts wunder Alaska statutes can be
al cohol related offenses, traffic offenses, and offenses up
to a Cass A m sdeneanor.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked what the nost serious offense
referred to the youth courts could be.

M. Kiehl said a mnor assault would be wthin the
m sdeneanor real m whereas serious bodily injury would not.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/09/10 2:08 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze noted he would |ike nore answers regarding
hi s questi on.

Representative Joule comrented that he received three
letters from students at M. Edgecunbe involved in youth
courts who were very articulate in their support of SB 257

These students pointed out that having youth handl e sone of
these issues provides a savings to the courts, noting
savings of about $10 thousand per case. Representative
Joul e asked if youth courts would have the latitude to dea

with truancy, which is sonething that the courts do not
appear to have tinme for.

M. Kiehl responded that he was not famliar enough wth
the statute on truancy to provide a definitive answer. He
noted that he did not believe truancy to be a felony and
purported that when a juvenile is picked up for the
of fense, the Division of Juvenile Justice could refer the
case to a youth court.

2:45: 00 PM

Representative Joule followed up noting that truancy is a
glaring issue around the state that could be addressed in
the legislation. He stated that part of the reason the
youth courts are effective is because peers are dealing
wi th each ot her.

Representative Gara asked Senator Egan if the bill’s
purpose ainmed to address a shortfall youth courts currently
face or at preventing a shortfall in the future.

Senator Egan replied that it is a little of both, so when
current federal funding runs out, the youth courts wll
continue to be funded.

Representative Gara asked whether the state is facing
decreasi ng federal funds.

M. Kiehl responded in the affirmative, noting the |ast of
the second earmark wll end. Youth courts have done an
excellent job of reaching out to their communities to
broaden their budgets as nuch as possible. The 10 percent
referenced in the operating budget wuld be an anount
sufficient to keep the lights on and nothing nore. However,
there have been requests from around the state to open new

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/09/10 2:08 P. M



youth courts that would serve nore Al askans. Youth courts
in some rural areas of the state have been closed and are
interested in re-opening.

2:48: 02 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze questioned in the interaction between
Department of Health and Social Services and the Departnent
of Law, who handl es what role and how would the | egislation
i npact the activities of both departnents.

M. Kiehl responded that the youth courts operate under the
Department of Health and Social Services as a diversionary
program for juvenile justice cases. The Al aska Court System
provi des cooperation and support but neither funding nor
oversight. Youth courts in nost comunities have use of
court roons when available. The court system has in turn
seen the value of the youth courts and provides the use of
their court roons free of charge.

2:49: 07 PM

Representative Foster asked if his assunption that nost
youth courts are associated with towns that have a court
was accurate. He wondered if villages have youth courts,
and if not, are there any options to get youth courts in
vill ages tel ephonically.

M. Kiehl felt there was a great possibility [to expand the
program telephonically] in the future. Alaska statute
47.12.400 only allows one youth court per nunicipality but
not hing prohibits two or nore nunicipalities from operating
a single youth court by agreenent between them

2:50:13 PM

Co- Chair Hawker pointed out that the |egislation originated
as a house bill in 2005, which died in the Senate Finance
Comm ttee and noted his support of the bill.

Representative Austernman noted his support of the youth
courts and belief that they should be funded. Youth courts
hel p young students. He namintained that the bill does not
fund youth courts but highlights the issue that they should
be funded.

2:51:34 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/09/10 2:08 P. M



Vice-Chair Thomas asked if plea bargaining from one
conplaint to a |lower one occurs in youth courts or are
charges are firm

M. Kiehl responded that every youth court runs a little
differently. In sone communities the youth court picks up a
case right after arrest. Oher youth courts operate as
sentencing courts. The first expansion of youth courts in
Al aska happened at a tinme when the juvenile justice system
was so swanped that kids picked up for shoplifting just
received a letter notifying them of a $25 fine. Now these
cases get closer |ook because attorneys volunteer their
services to the youth courts.

Vi ce-Chair Thomas rel ated a personal antidote.

2:54:53 PM

MEGHAN STANGELAND, ADVOCATE, JUNEAU YOUTH COURT, supported
the bill and keeping youth courts. She stressed that she
has | earned so much from the youth court system including
how the court system works and public speaking skills. She
noted the courts are also very inportant for the defendants
as the process focuses on constructing sentences that
reflect personalization for each defendant, which allows
the defendant to identify their strengths and to hopefully
give back to the comunity in ways that help them realize
they can be an asset to the conmunity.

G NNY  ESPENSHADE, KENAI PENI NSULA YOUTH COURT (via
t el econference), r esponded to Representati ve Joul e’ s
coorment related to truancy, noting that each comunity
youth court could work with their community to nodify the
court’s focus based on the community’'s specific needs. M.
Espenshade referred to the upper state New York youth court
system which is an entirely truancy based court, as an
exanpl e of how each youth court can respond to the needs of
their given comunity.

2:57:33 PM

CEEZAR MARTI NSON, ANCHORAGE YOUTH COURT (via
t el econference), enphasized his strong support of the bill.
As a nenber of the Anchorage youth court, his experience
has been a very rewarding time, inspiring himto pursue a
career in law enforcenent. M. Martinson encouraged support
of the bill.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 04/09/10 2:08 P. M



SHARON LEQON, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ANCHORAGE YOUTH COURT (via
tel econference), 1in response to an wearlier coment by
Representative Foster, voiced agreenent on trying to get
youth courts into rural areas. Several vyouth courts are
currently looking to see if these practices can be used in
rural comunities.

Ms. Leon testified that the support of vyouth courts
presents an opportunity to fund a program that provides
tangi ble benefits to Alaska' s youth and adults and the
lives of future generations. M. Leon enphasized the
importance of a program where youth and adults work
together in a partnership and urged support of the bill.

3:02: 38 PM

Representative Foster thanked M. Leon for the Anchorage
youth court’s rural outreach efforts.

Co-Chair Stoltze closed public testinony.

3:03:22 PM

Co- Chair Hawker MOVED to report SB 257 out of Conmittee
wi th individual recommendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

SB 257 was REPORTED out of Committee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with previously published fiscal notes:
FN 1(CRT), FN 2(DHS), FN 3(LAW.

#hb331
HOUSE BI LL NO. 331

"An Act relating to funding for youth courts; and
relating to accounting for crimnal fines.”

HB 331 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD
#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:06 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 04/09/10 2:08 P. M



